
 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Standards Committee 

   

Meeting Date: 
 
 Wednesday 22nd October, 2014 

   

Time: 
 

 7.00 pm 

   

Venue: 
 
 Committee Rooms 3 & 4, 17th Floor, Westminster City Hall 

   

Members:  Councillors: 

  Judith Warner (Chairman) 
Ian Adams 
David Boothroyd 
Ruth Bush 
Louise Hyams 
Tim Mitchell 
 
Also Invited: Geoffrey Rivlin QC (statutory Independent Person) 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall from 6.00pm.  If you have 
a disability and require any special assistance please 
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in 
advance of the meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact: 
 
Naomi Stauber 
Senior Committee and Governance Officer 
Email: nstauber@westminster.gov.uk  
 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.  MEMBERSHIP  

 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report any 
changes to the membership  
 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the existence and 
nature of any personal or prejudicial interests in matters on this 

agenda. 
  

 

3.  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2) 

 To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 30th April 2014.  
 

 

4.  MEMBER INDUCTION PROGRAMME REVIEW (Pages 3 - 18) 

 The report provides the Committee with a review of the recent 
Member Induction Programme undertaken post-Local Elections 
2014, including the Members Code of Conduct training. 
 

 

5.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 To receive any other business which the Chairman considers 
urgent.  
 

 

 
 
Peter Large  
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
14 October 2014 
 



 

           
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 

 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

At the meeting of the Standards Committee held concurrently with the General Purposes 
Committee at 6.00pm on Wednesday 30 April 2014 at Porchester Hall, Porchester Road,  

Bayswater, London, W2 5DU 

 
Members Present: Councillors Tim Mitchell David Boothroyd, Michael Brahams,           
Ruth Bush, Tony Devenish, Louise Hyams and Alastair Moss. 
 
Independent Person: Councillors Melvyn Caplan and Robert Davis 
 
1.    MEMBERSHIP 
 
1.1 Apologies of absence were received from Councillor Ian Adams. 

 
1.2 As it was necessary, given the meeting was held concurrently with the General 
 Purposes, it was agreed that Councillor Caplan should chair the meeting. 
 
2.        DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
2.1      No interests were declared. 
 
3. MINUTES 
 
3.1 RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12th March 2014 be approved. 
 
4. AMENDMENTS TO THE MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT (see report of the Head 

of Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
4.1 Peter Large, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, introduced the report and 
 outlined the reasons for the report. 
 
4.2 Members of both committees confirmed that the changes proposed met the 
 concerns which had been expressed by the General Purposes Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

MINUTES 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

4.3 Resolved: 
 
 That in view of the decision of the General Purposes Urgency Sub-Committee to 

refer the issues set out in paragraphs 3.2 and 3.5 of the report to the Standards 
Committee, the Committee agrees the revisions to the Code proposed by Officers 
and recommend these to the General Purposes Committee for adoption by the 
Council as part of the Constitution, at its Annual meeting on 4 June 2014. 

 
6. CLOSE OF MEETING 
 
6.1      The meeting ended at 6.19pm. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
CHAIRMAN __________________________  DATE _______________________ 

Page 2



 

 

Standards Committee 

 
 

 
Date:                                        22nd October 2014 

Classification:                         For General Release 

Title:                                         Member Induction Programme Review 

Report of:                                Head of Cabinet Secretariat; and  

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Wards Involved:                      Not Applicable 

Policy Context:                       Supporting Local Democracy 

Financial Summary:               The cost of the induction programme 

Report Author:                                                                          
Contact Details:                      
 

Janis Best 
Member Services Manager 
Email: jbest@westminster.gov.uk 
 
Naomi Stauber 
Senior Committee and Governance Officer 
Email: nstauber@westminster.gov.uk 
 
 
 

 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The Standards Committee has a duty to promote and maintain high standards 

of conduct by the Members of the Council and to assist Members to observe 
the requirements of the Code of Conduct. In exercising this duty, the 
Committee previously reviewed the proposed arrangements for the induction 
of newly elected (and re-elected) Members, to ensure they were provided with 
sufficient information and resources to enable them to participate in business 
appropriately and fully understand their responsibilities as Councillors. 

 
1.2 This report details the induction programme that took place for Members 

following the May 2014 local elections and sets out the additional training and 
opportunities which have been provided since. The report also details 
feedback from Members on the induction programme, which has been sought 
to enable officers to firstly, learn lessons from the programme and secondly, 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



  

ascertain what further training and development Members require to 
participate fully and productively as City of Westminster Councillors. 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Standards Committee notes the post-election induction programme, 

as detailed in this report, to assist both newly-elected and re-elected Members 
fulfil their role as City of Westminster Councillors and ensure they have the 
relevant knowledge to participate appropriately in Council business; 

 
2.2 That the Standards Committee notes the attendance rates of the induction 

sessions as detailed in Appendix A and, specifically, the proportion of 
Members who have received training on the Members Code of Conduct (as 
detailed in section 5 of this report); 

 
2.3 That the Standards Committee notes the feedback obtained from Members 

regarding the induction programme, as detailed in Appendix B; 
 
2.4 That the Standards Committee provides comment and recommendations 

relating to any further work it considers necessary to ensure that the City 
Council fulfils its duty to provide its Members with appropriate guidance, 
advice, training and/or development opportunities to enable them to conduct 
themselves in accordance with the Council’s requirements and participate 
appropriately and productively in Council business (See section 3 below). 

 
3. Key Areas of Consideration: 
 
3.1 The Committee may wish to consider the following key questions, in light of 

the information contained in this report and the feedback from Members: 
 

(1) What key messages for improvement can be drawn-out from Members’ 
comments and feedback on the induction? (initial suggestions are 
contained in section 7 below). 
 

(2) Are there any knowledge gaps or practical areas that officers should 
seek to address going forward as a priority? 
 

(3) What action can the relevant Member-level bodies usefully take to 
ensure that Members have the adequate knowledge and training to 
perform their respective roles? For example, the Westminster Scrutiny 
Commission in respect of ‘scrutineer’ training and Audit and 
Performance in respect of fraud, bribery and corruption issues 
(examples of current activity are contained in section 6 below). 

 
4. Member Induction Programme 
 
4.1 An induction programme was compiled for new and re-elected Members to 

attend after the recent local elections in May 2014. The programme 
incorporated both logistical elements associated with the induction of new 

Page 4



  

Members, as well as sessions organised in conjunction with the Council’s 
Executive Management Team (the Strategic Executive Board as then was). 

 
4.2  The programme began on the evening of the election count (Friday 23rd May), 

with all Members provided with the necessary forms and information 
associated with their election. Members were also given a schedule for the 
more detailed induction sessions that were held on Thursday 29th May and 
Monday 2nd June. 

 
4.3 The induction sessions consisted of a combination of workshops hosted by the 

Executive Management Team and senior managers, as well as a 
‘marketplace’ that allowed Council departments to showcase the work they do, 
highlight their key achievements and current priorities and detail how 
Members can engage with them.  

 
4.4 The workshop sessions were timetabled so that, over the two days, Members 

would be able to attend six of the eight Executive Management Team 
presentations.  The marketplace was a more informal atmosphere at which 
Members could talk one-on-one with senior Council officers about the work 
they do and find out more about individual teams. 

 
4.5 There was also the opportunity for Members to address some practical 

elements of induction, such as their official Council photograph, being 
measured for their ceremonial robes, and to speak with the IT team about 
Members’ IT needs and the allowance in the coming year. 

 
4.6 Across the two days, 26 individual Members attended at least one session 

(more than 40% of those elected), including all 14 newly-elected Members. 
A breakdown of the attendance per session is included as Appendix A (NB: 
the appendix counts individual attendances at each session and not individual 
Members; hence why the total is higher than stated here). 

 
5. Members Code of Conduct Training 
 
5.1 The Standards Committee has a specific duty to directly advise on training on 

matters relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct. At its last meeting, the 
Committee noted that the statistics relating to Member attendance at previous 
Code of Conduct training sessions held in 2012 (at 40%) was a cause for 
concern. In recognition of the importance of this training, the Committee 
resolved to communicate the message to all Members that training on the 
Code is considered to be compulsory and the expectation exists that all 
Members would attend.  

 
5.2 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) held three 

Code of Conduct training sessions (two in June and one in July), which 
achieved a very good attendance rate. Members were also advised that 
further one-to-one sessions would be arranged for any Member who either 
could not attend the scheduled sessions or wished to receive further advice. A 
number of Members have taken up this offer and one-to-one sessions have 
since been held upon request. This is a standing invitation and Members are 

Page 5



  

advised to contact the Head of Legal and Democratic Services at any time if 
they require advice relating to matters relating to their conduct or interests. 

 
5.3 These recent sessions combined (the scheduled sessions and one-to-one 

training) achieved an attendance rate of 98%, which is a vast improvement 
on the 2012 rate. The Member who has not yet received training has been 
contacted to ensure training can be arranged at the earliest opportunity. 

 
6. Other training provided for Members 
 
6.1 In addition to the induction programme and the mandatory Code of Conduct 

training the following additional training has been provided since the elections:  
 

Planning and Licensing functions 
 

  In recognition of the quasi-judicial nature of the functions of the Planning 
Committees and the Licensing Committees, mandatory training for all 
Members sitting on either committee for the first time is a long-standing local 
requirement. This training is provided in-house by the Area Planning Team 
Leaders and the Council’s Licensing Policy and Strategy Manager, 
respectively. Members have always been extremely conscientious in fulfilling 
this requirement and no issues have occurred relating to non-attendance. 
Refresher training or further guidance is always available upon request. 

 
Anti-fraud, Bribery and Corruption 

 
 An anti-fraud, bribery and corruption session has been arranged for all 

Members in the near future and will be conducted by the Tri-Borough Head of 
Fraud. 

 
Scrutiny function 

 
The Westminster Scrutiny Commission received a report at its July 2014 
meeting that explored the possible options for backbench Member training and 
development in the area of scrutiny.  The Scrutiny team are now assisting in 
arranging a number of site visits for Members of the various committees. The 
first Policy and Scrutiny Committee to take-up the offer of organised site visits 
has been the Housing, Finance and Customer Services Committee, with visits 
and briefings arranged to the Housing Options Service, a regeneration site 
(Ebury Bridge Estate), CityWest Homes as well as a tour of intermediate 
housing. 

 
6.2 The Committee’s views are sought on whether further training and 

development could usefully be arranged, either relating to the functions 
detailed above, or relating to an area that has not yet been addressed. 

 
6.3 It should be noted that no single committee has overall responsibility for 

Member training and development. There are a number of committees and 
Members in various roles and positions of responsibility who are ‘stakeholders’ 

Page 6



  

to be consulted on aspects of training and development – ranging from 
‘Committee Chairmen’ to ‘scrutineers’ to Cabinet Members.  

 
6.4 It should also be noted that ‘training and development’ should not be narrowly 

defined in terms of theoretical knowledge, but also encompasses practical 
skills applicable to various committee roles - such as effective questioning 
techniques or chairmanship skills. These essential tools, which enable 
Members to play an effective and productive part in our democratic 
framework, can also be addressed and enhanced through formal training if 
there is a desire from Members to do so. 

 
7. Induction session feedback 
 
7.1 Following the completion of the induction programme, officers contacted all 

Members to request feedback on their experiences.  Two simple key 
questions were posed: 

 
(1) Did you attend any of the Member Induction sessions? If not, why not. 

(2) If you were planning the Member Induction, what would you have done 

differently? 

 

The responses are detailed at Appendix B. 

 
7.2 The feedback from the induction sessions was positive overall, but there are 

certainly lessons to be learnt when organising a similar programme in the 
future.  The three key areas of criticism are detailed below, with associated 
questions for the Standards Committee to consider: 

 

• The overuse of Powerpoint presentations; 
 

- What alternative presentation or training delivery format does the 
Committee think would be more suitable or conducive to Member 
training? 

 

• Having information about the sessions further in advance; 
 

• An overall feeling that the presentations should have been targeted to 
focus on how Members can engage with the services rather than the 
achievements of the service. 

 
-  Does the Committee have any suggestions as what appropriate steps 

can be taken to ensure Members have information about officers ‘on 
the ground’ in the service areas, as well as those ‘at the top-level’ of 
the organisation? Is there a simple communication solution to this 
(such as providing up-to-date contact lists on an annual basis), or is 
this symptomatic of a more fundamental engagement issue to be 
addressed? 

  

Page 7



  

7.3 Members responded positively to the informal marketplace setting, which 
officers have noted for similar inductions in the future. In fact, Members have 
requested that similar, more focussed sessions, be held at frequent intervals 
going forward which highlight the work of specific Departments or teams in 
more detail. This feedback has been extremely useful for officers – to 
understand and receive the message that there is an appetite amongst 
Members for a more robust and ongoing cycle of training to be developed and 
taken forward, rather than limited to once every four years (following an 
election). 

 
7.4 Utilising this feedback, the Cabinet Secretariat and Members Services team is 

now working on a regular programme of more detailed Department-led 
sessions for Members, as requested. Comments and recommendations are 
sought from the Standards Committee as to how these sessions can be as 
successful and useful as possible, in light of the information contained in this 
report and the feedback from Members detailed in Appendix B. 

 
8. Financial Implications 
 
8.1 The cost of the induction programme will be met from existing budgeted 
 resources. 
 
9. Legal Implications 
 
9.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 
 
9.2 Members are required to make a Declaration of Acceptance of Office before 

undertaking formal duties as Westminster Councillors and all Members 
successfully did so. The legal aspects of the requirements relating to the 
disclosure and registration of Members’ interests were covered in the training 
sessions conducted by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services and 
further advice relating to conduct, interests, or any other legal matter 
pertaining to Members’ participation in Council business is always available 
upon request. 

 
10. Conclusion 
 
10.1 The feedback overall from Members on the induction programme was positive 

and those involved in co-ordinating future training and development 
opportunities, as well as future post-election induction programmes, will take 
on board all feedback provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



  

BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 

• Standards Committee Report - Member Induction Programme (12 March 2014) 
 
 
APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A – Breakdown of Member attendance at Induction Sessions and 
      Code of Conduct training 
 
Appendix B – Feedback from Members on the Induction Sessions 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         
 
 
 
 

If you have any queries about this report 
please contact: 

 
Janis Best 

Member Services Manager 
Email: jbest@westminster.gov.uk 

 
Naomi Stauber 

Senior Committee and Governance Officer 
Legal and Democratic Services 

Email: nstauber@westminster.gov.uk 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 
Members attendance at Induction Sessions 
 
Thursday 29 May 
 

 
Workshop/Session 
 

 
Member 

Attendance 

 
Newly elected 
Members 

 
Re-elected 
Members 

 

 
City Management 
 

 
8 

 
4 

 
4 

 
Public Health 
 

 
6 

 
3 

 
3 

 
Housing, 
Regeneration and  
Worklessness 
 

 
8 

 
5 

 
3 

 
Strategy &  
Communications 
 

 
8 

 
5 

 
3 

 
Children’s Services 
 

 
8 

 
4 

 
4 

 
Committee and 
Governance 
Services and 
Scrutiny 
 

 
5 

 
4 

 
1 

 
Built Environment 
 

 
8 

 
7 

 
1 

 
Adult Services 
 

 
8 

 
4 

 
4 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Monday 2 June 
 

 
Workshop/Session 
 

 
Member 

Attendance 

 
Newly elected 
Members 

 
Re-elected 
Members 

 

 
Built Environment 
 

 
6 

 
2 

 
4 

 
Strategy & 
Communications 
 

 
6 

 
5 

 
1 

 
Committee and 
Governance 
Services & Scrutiny 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
0 

 
Public Health 
 

 
6 
 

 
5 

 
1 

 
City Management 
 

 
7 

 
5 

 
2 

 
Adult Services 
 

 
2 

 
2 

 
0 

 
Housing, 
Regeneration and 
Worklessness 
 

 
10 

 
6 

 
4 

 
Children’s Services 
 

 
2 

 
2 

 
0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
Attendance at Member Code of Conduct Sessions* 
 

 
Workshop/Session 
 

 
Member 

Attendance 

 
Newly elected 
Members 

 
Re-elected 
Members 

 

 
Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

 
59 

 
14 

 
45 

 
 
*These attendance figures include both the group sessions and the one-to-one sessions 
which were arranged upon request. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

Member Induction Feedback: 

 

 
Question 1: Did you attend any of the Member Induction sessions? If not, why not 

 

 
1. 
 

 
“I did attend a Members' Induction Session” 

 

 
2. 
 

 
“Yes, as many as I could” 

 

 
3. 
 

 
“I attended six induction sessions and subsequently a Code of Conduct meeting” 
 

 
4. 
 

 
“I didn’t attend any sessions” 

 

 
5. 
 

 
“I did attend one evening of induction and found it more informative than I 

expected as I had updates on the departments........one aspect of a department’s 

activity was quite new to me and that was very interesting.  Clearly I can’t 

comment on how new members found the sessions but I would have thought they 

would be informative and lead on to further more detailed queries afterwards” 

 

 
6. 
 

 
“I attended all of them” 

 

 
7. 
 

 
“I attended excellent induction meetings on the 29th May conducted by Ben 

Denton and learned a lot” 

 

 
8. 

 
“No I didn't attend. I was not available” 

 

 
9. 

 
I attended a 1:1 session with Peter Large.  I would not have changed anything. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 
Question 2: If you were planning the Member Induction, what would you have 

done differently? 

 

 
1. 
 

 
“It is very difficult to get Members excited on this. I suggest that next time 

examples of practices that would contravene a Standards Code are given. It also 

might be an idea to give Members a short quiz on what they think is acceptable 

and what isn't”. (This was specifically in reference to the Code of Conduct 

session) 

 

 
2. 
 

 
“Cut down significantly on the length of the Powerpoint presentations. They 

tended to make the sessions unnecessarily one-way and didactic. One of the 

sessions just had someone reading every word of the PowerPoint slides, with no 

interaction at all until the very end. But overall, they are a good idea and they 

were done well, by the way”. 

 

 
3. 
 

 
“Both the sessions and the informal poster presentations were very helpful. I was, 
of course, newly elected at the time. A short description of each session would 
have been helpful beforehand to help decide which to attend” 
 

 
4. 
 

 
“I would give all and in particular about to be elected councillors (should they be 

elected) more notice of the session dates. It is quite a lot of information to absorb 

in a short timescale, so it may be helpful to have the info sent out on line prior to 

the sessions” 

 

 
5. 
 

 

“It could have been slightly improved by having few case studies to illustrate the 

most common situations on which members ask for guidance”. 

 

 
6. 
 

 
“Thought it went well, right content and length of session” 

 

 
7. 
 

 
“I would have attended more but was not able to after Mayormaking” 

 

 
8. 

 
Too much emphasis was made on showcasing various achievements, rather than 

providing explanation as to the process and members can benefit and actually 

Page 16



use the services of various departments. This could be rectified. The purpose of 

these inductions should be to provide new members with practical information as 

to how they might engage with different services within departments e.g. on 

casework, policy issues etc.  

 

 
9. 

 
Suggestion: “A ‘3 months In’ Q & A with SEB” 

 
10. 

 
I would focus more on providing contact lists, talking about common issues and a 

session meeting the relevant Member Services Officer to go through the ward 

budgets etc.  

 

 
11. 

 
“It would have been useful if SEB directors had provided information on the go-to 
people in their teams for queries” 
 

 
12. 

 
“I attended all the sessions. I found them informative and helpful. However, it 

would have been useful if we had been provided with details of whom to contact 

in the various departments when undertaking casework” 

 

 
13. 

 
Suggestion: “A written briefing summary or copies of the slides in anticipation 
would have helped focus on any specific questions”. 
 

 
14. 

 
Suggestion: “More options on timing as difficult to attend many sessions.  Good 
idea to have stands in one room to begin with.  Good to have succinct written 
material to back up the sessions” 
 

 
15. 

 
“I would have worked to give more information on the process that councillors 

should be using in the different areas to be most effective. 

 

While it was great to see the achievements of each of the departments and the 

challenges they face, I have spent a lot of time subsequently working out how I fit 

into the system and the most effective way to raise an issue. 

 

It would be useful for each department to have provided a single sheet A4 

executive summary of their achievements and challenges, along with a single 

sheet with how councillors can interact with the service on behalf of residents” 

Page 17



 
16.  

 
“I was happy with the content”. 

 
17. 

 

“It would be beneficial if some case work examples were included i.e. if you have 

a complaint re planning/ parking/ housing this is how you can deal with it/ who to 

contact and here are historic examples of what happened and how a local 

councillor made a difference” 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Member Induction Programme Review
	Appendix A - Members attendance at Induction Sessions
	Appendix B - Member Feedback


